
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Crockett, Convener; Farquharson, Vice-Convener, and Councillors 

Cassie, Cooney, Donnelly, Hunter, McDonald, Penny, Reynolds, Robertson, 
John Stewart, Kevin Stewart, Wendy Stuart and John West.  
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 19 February 2010 
 
 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE are requested to meet in 
Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY, 2 MARCH 2010 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
RODERICK MACBEATH 

ACTING HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

 MINUTE AND COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

 

 1.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 19th January 2010  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 1.2  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

 2.1  Audit Progress Report 2009/10- Report by Henderson Loggie  (Pages 15 - 
20) 
 

 2.2  Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan and Fee Proposal 2009-10 - Report 
by Henderson Loggie  (Pages 21 - 60) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 2.3  Bank Reconciliation Progress Report - Report by the City Chamberlain  
(Pages 61 - 64) 
 

 NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

 

 3.1  Internal Audit Reports Issued - Report by the Internal Audit Manager  
(Pages 65 - 122) 
 

 3.2  Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations and Results of 
Physical Verification - Report by the Internal Audit Manager  (Pages 123 - 
134) 
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Karen 
Riddoch, tel. (52)2723 or email kariddoch@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

ABERDEEN, 19th January, 2010. - Minute of Meeting of the AUDIT AND 
RISK COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Crockett, Convener; Councillor 
Farquharson, Vice-Convener;  Lord Provost Peter Stephen;  and Councillors 
Boulton (as substitute for Councillor Donnelly), Cassie, Cooney, Hunter, 
Noble (as substitute for Councillor McDonald), Penny, Reynolds, Robertson, 
John Stewart, Kevin Stewart, Wendy Stuart, and John West 

 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 
3rd December, 2009. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute, subject to an amendment at Article 6 (External Auditor 
Announcement), paragraph 1, to replace ten years with eight years. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
2. The Committee had before it a statement of business prepared by the Acting 
Head of Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that in relation to item 5 (Tied Houses), to note that all Services were to be 

reminded of the importance of reporting to their Service Committees on tied 
houses to enable the Finance and Resources Committee to have a 
Corporate overview on the matter; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the statement. 
 
 
 
AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2008/09 
 
3. The Committee had before it a report by Henderson Loggie, External 
Auditor, which detailed progress in relation to the external audit operational plan for 
2008/09. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that in relation to the outstanding follow up audit on School Lets, the 

Director of Corporate Governance would liaise with the Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport to clarify the position and would respond to 
Councillor Kevin Stewart; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the report. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



 2

 
FOLLOW UP REVIEWS 2008/09 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by Henderson Loggie, External 
Auditor, which detailed the follow up reviews undertaken on various reports issued 
as part of the 2007/08 audit programme. 
 
The report stated that the objective of the follow up reviews was to assess whether 
recommendations made in previous reports had been appropriately implemented 
and to ensure that where there was little or no progress had then appropriate plans 
were in place to progress them. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that in relation to the outstanding training programme for the 

Financial Systems Review Team, the City Chamberlain would provide details 
of the online training course that had been developed to elected members, 
and would respond to Councillor Kevin Stewart with details on who was 
involved with the development of the training programme; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the report. 
 
 
 
YEAR END MANAGEMENT LETTER 2008/09 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by Henderson Loggie, External 
Auditor, which (1) set out a summary of the principal issues encountered during the 
2008/09 audit period; and (2) appended an action plan which identified 
recommendations which were intended to address those issues for future years 
and to improve the audit process. 
 
The report advised that a further 14 recommendations had been made which would 
improve the management of the accounts preparation process once implemented 
and were highlighted in the action plan appended to the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request Henderson Loggie to explain any acronyms contained in future 

reports; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the report. 
 
 
 
BANK RECONCILIATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
6. With reference to Article 7 of the minute of its meeting of 3rd December, 
2009, the Committee had before it a report by the City Chamberlain which provided 
an update on the progress to date in relation to the bank reconciliation process and 
the implementation of the automatic bank reconciliation module. 
 
The report advised that since the last update to the Committee on 3rd December, 
2009, there continued to be positive progress in relation to the bank reconciliation 
with continuing timely and robust clearance of items from the reconciliation to 
ensure that it was up to date with timescales agreed for the process.  The 
November reconciliations had been partially completed with annual leave and 

Page 2



 3

turnover delaying the process.  The manual process remained fundamental for the 
automated bank reconciliation process as it required an up to date starting position. 
 
The report detailed key activity since the last report in relation to the automated 
bank reconciliation module and highlighted the next steps required to achieve the 
full implementation date of 31st March, 2010. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee -  
(a) note the current positive progress on maintaining the bank reconciliations 

and on the implementation of the automated bank reconciliation system. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the update from the City Chamberlain that the November 

reconciliations had been completed and signed off, and that the December 
reconciliations were on schedule; 

(ii) to note that the City Chamberlain would respond to Councillor Cooney 
outwith the meeting regarding his query on the additional budget allocation 
figures for the bank reconciliation; 

(iii) to congratulate staff on their work to date in relation to the project; and 
(iv) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
 
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the City Chamberlain which 
provided information on various matters relating to the implementation of the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) by the Council. 
 
The report explained that as part of the 2007 Budget, the Chancellor set out the 
requirement for government bodies to adopt International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), with the intention of bringing benefits in consistency and 
comparability between financial reports and to follow private sector best practice 
with the intention that Local Authorities would prepare IFRS reports for the financial 
year 2010/11. 
 
The report stated that the new reporting procedures would bring significant 
challenges to the Council which may result in changes to the accounting policies, 
the format and content of financial statements and the systems necessary for 
preparing the reports. 
 
The report provided information on the areas that would cause significant change to 
finance practices and indicated that a Project Team had been established who 
were currently finalising a detailed project plan which identified workstreams that 
would be assigned to individuals. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee: 
(a) consider the context of the report and note the project team approach that 

has  been adopted to deliver successful implementation; 

Page 3



 4

(b) instruct that Directors actively engage in the process of implementation  and 
ensure that their senior managers are made aware of the need to participate 
in the process; and 

(c) to note that further updates would be provided during the course of the 
implementation. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the City Chamberlain would arrange training sessions for elected 

members in relation to the changes in the accounting policies and 
procedures as a result of the implementation of the International Financial 
Reporting Standards; 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained within the report. 
 
 
 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES 
 
8. With reference to Article 8, resolution (ii) (a) of the minute of its meeting of 
8th September 2009, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of 
Corporate Governance which provided information on the use of Project 
Management Guidelines across the Council and outlined the future approach that 
would be adopted. 
 
The report advised that existing corporate Project Management Guidelines were 
available to all staff via the Zone and were designed to provide a corporate 
approach to project management.  Whilst investigating the use of the guidelines it 
was not possible to identify, across the Council, the frequency of use or the 
compliance with all aspects where they had been used.   
 
The report provided information on the different aspects of Project Management 
and Contract Management and appended the current Project Management 
Guidelines which were to be reviewed and relevant training and support offered for 
those involved with future programmes, projects and contract management. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) notes the outcome of the overview of the use of project management 

guidelines;  and  
(b) note the proposed way forward for the future approach to programme 

management and the associated elements of project management and 
contract management. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 

MATTER OF URGENCY 
  

The Convener intimated that he had directed in terms of Section 50 (B) 
(4) (b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the following 
item of business be considered as a matter of urgency as the matter 
had been concluded some time ago and the action plan was now 
operational. 

Page 4



 5

 
AUDIT SCOTLAND – AUDIT OF HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT – 
RISK ASSESSMENT REPORT 
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented the outcome of the Housing and Council Tax Benefit 
Audit carried out by Audit Scotland in October 2009. 
 
The report advised that the key objective of the assessment was to determine the 
extent to which the Benefits Service was meeting it’s obligations to achieve 
continuous improvement in its activities with specific consideration of the 
effectiveness of the Benefits Service meeting the needs of the Community and its 
customers.   
 
The report stated that the Benefits Service had improved its performance year on 
year with new claims and speed of processing information despite operating with 
financial constraints and reduced staffing levels.  The positive nature of the Audit 
had been reported to the Chief Executive by the Director of Audit.  Audit Scotland 
had identified a small number of improvements that were addressed in an action 
plan that was sent to Audit Scotland. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the positive Audit Scotland report and acknowledge that 
the action plan noted in (Appendix I) had been submitted to Audit Scotland as 
required by the due date. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
 The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local 

Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the press and public from 
the meeting during consideration of the following items of business so 
as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of the class described in 
paragraphs 1 and 8 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 

 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED 
 
10. The Committee had before it (1) a report by the Internal Audit Manager 
which appended recently completed audit reports on the Services as detailed 
below;  and (2) management statements from the appropriate Directors in response 
to each of the completed reports. 
11.  

Service Title Date Issued 

Corporate Governance –  
City Chamberlain 

Creditors (All Services) November, 2009 

Corporate Governance –  
City Chamberlain 

Inter Services Trading November, 2009 

Page 5



 6

Service Title Date Issued 

Corporate Governance –  
City Solicitor 

Legal Services Debt 
Recovery 

November, 2009 

Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure  

Marischal College December, 2009 

Housing and Environment CAMS Project November, 2009 

Housing and Environment Consilium Project November, 2009 

Housing and Environment Homeless November, 2009 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that in relation Audit RM-CC/CA/0811 (Creditors – All Services), that in 

relation to the high incidence of errors in Social Care and Well Being for 
receipts of goods and services over the past three audits, to instruct the 
Director of Social Care and Well Being to report the relevant statutory 
performance indicator (SPI) to every Social Care and Well Being Committee;   

(ii) that in relation to Audit RM-CS/SA/0802 (Legal Services – Debt Recovery), 
to note that the City Solicitor would provide members with a detailed account 
of the debt recovery process;   

(iii) that in relation to Audit CG/SA/0911 (Marischal College), to note that – 
 (a) Mr. Sproull would respond to Councillor Cooney outwith the meeting 

regarding his query on archaeology costs;  and  
 (b) in relation to opening and recording of tenders, to instruct the City 

Solicitor to look at the Standing Orders relating to contracts to ensure 
that for future contracts the Standing Orders contained a formal 
process to deal with addendums to original tender documentation; 

(iv) that in relation to Audit SL-PI/SA/0802 (CAMS Project) –  
 (a) to instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to report to each 

cycle of the relevant Committee to enable comprehensive scrutiny of 
the project;  and  

 (b) to note that the Director of Corporate Governance would raise the 
concerns of the Committee in relation to the project with the 
Corporate Management Team;   

(v) to otherwise approve the issue of the Internal Audit reports and endorse the 
recommendations for improvement contained therein. 

 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
RESULTS OF PHYSICAL VERIFICATION 
 
12. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Audit Manager which 
(1) detailed a number of recommendations previously approved in audit reports 
issued, the implementation of which was overdue;  and (2) for selected audits, 
advised on implementation status checks on recommendations advised by auditees 
to Internal Audit as completed. 
 
The Committee received updates from various officers in relation to the Audit 
recommendations affecting their Services and considered revised implementation 
dates where appropriate. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) that in relation to Audit CI-SDD/CR/0801 (ICT Disaster Recovery) –  

Page 6



 7

(a) item 4.3.1(ii), to approve the revised implementation date of the 
middle of January, 2010;  and  

(b) item 4.3.1(iii), to note that the work would progress through February, 
2010;   

(ii) that in relation to Audit N-SE/SA/0803 (Building Cleaning), items 4.3.1(i), 
4.3.1(ii), 4.3.3(i) and 4.3.3(ii), to note that the Head of Service would meet 
with Internal Audit to discuss the possible re-wording of the 
recommendations to enable staff to progress the outstanding issues;   

(iii) that in relation to Audit S-CL/SA/0807 (Educational Clothing Grants and 
Maintenance Allowances), item 4.2.1, to note that the recommendation 
would be implemented;  and  

(iv) that in relation to Audit RM-RDD/SA/0703 (Commercial Property Activities) 
items 4.1.2(i), 4.2.2(ii) and 4.4.1, to note that the outstanding 
recommendations would be implemented with immediate effect. 

 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROCUREMENT 
 
12. With reference to Article 9 of the minute of it’s meeting of 3rd November 
2009, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate 
Governance which provided an update on the progress made with the Internal 
Audit Procurement. 
 
The report advised that a full European Procurement tendering exercise would 
need to be undertaken for the procurement of an Audit Service and that a Project 
Plan was in place to pursue the procurement which built in statutory notification and 
response times. 
 
The report had appended the detailed options appraisal and SWOT analysis that 
had been undertaken whilst investigating the possible outsourcing of the Internal 
Audit Function.   
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the detail of the report; and  
(b) instruct officers to continue to progress arrangements to outsource the 

functions of Internal Audit. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 - BARNEY CROCKETT, Convener. 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT AND RISK 
 

COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
 

2nd March 2010 
 

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

1. Continuous 
Improvement 
02.06.09 
Article 13 

Risk Management Progress 
Update 
 
The Committee resolved to request 
that each Service Risk Register be 
reported to the appropriate 
Committee once every six months. 
 
 

At its meeting on 8th September  
2009 the Committee requested 
that the Corporate Governance 
Risk Register be reported to the 
Committee before the end of the 
year 
 
At its meeting on 3rd December 
2009, the Committee agreed that 
a report would be submitted to this 
Committee twice a year to provide 
an update on the Service Risk 
Registers and to review the 
Corporate Risk Register. 

Director of 
Corporate 
Governance 
 
 
 
 

08.06.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2. Scrutiny Panel 
01.09.08 
Article 12 

Audit RM-CS/SA/0601 (Legal 
Accounting and Costing) items 
4.1.3, 4.2.1, 4.3.2 (i), 4.3.2 (ii), 4.3.3 
and 4.3.4 
 
The Panel agreed to request the City 
Solicitor in consultation with the 
Internal Audit Manager to investigate 
the resource requirements for the 
implementation of Eureka and report 
back on the findings at the next 
meeting of the Panel. 
 
 
 

At its meeting on 3 October, 2008, 
the Panel instructed the City 
Solicitor in consultation with the 
Convener to liaise with the 
software consultant to identify any 
possible low cost interim 
arrangement that could be 
implemented until a new Council 
structure had been approved and 
to report back at the next meeting 
of the Panel.  It was noted at its 
meeting on 1 December, 2008, that 
following discussions with the 
software company it had not 
proved possible for them to provide 

City Solicitor 
 
Internal Auditor 
 
 

08.09.09 Spring 
2010 
 
 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

.2

P
a
g
e
 9



 2

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

 a low cost interim solution, and that 
therefore implementation of 
changes to Eureka should be 
postponed until it was known if 
there would be any amendment to 
the current Council Service 
structure. 
 
This item refers to the need to re-
align the Eureka database to 
reflect current structure and hence 
group bills for legal services 
provided correctly and timeously.  
This item will be progressed after 
the realignment of the Services. 
 
 

3. Scrutiny Panel 
01.12.08 
Article 10 

RM-CC/SA/0708 – Allocation of 
Central Charges 
 
The Panel agreed to request officers 
to provide benchmark information on 
the Council’s performance in the 
allocation of central charges in 
comparison with other local 
authorities to all members of the 
Panel. 
 

We have some benchmarking 
information provided by other 
authorities. The City 
Chamberlain is currently 
checking information for 
accuracy.   
 
At its meeting on 19 January, 
2009, the Panel agreed to 
approve that this work be 
postponed until a service review 
had been undertaken and 
reconsidered once a new overall 
Council structure was in place. 
 
 
A separate piece of work is 
currently being undertaken on 

City 
Chamberlain 
 
 

08.09.09 Spring 
2010 

P
a

g
e
 1

0



 3

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

reviewing internal recharges, 
which includes the allocation of 
central charges and identifying 
areas for efficiencies. This work is 
expected to be concluded by 31 
March 2010.   

4. Scrutiny Panel 
19.01.09 
Article 9 

Bank Reconciliations Progress 
Report 
 
The Panel agreed:- 
(i) that a further report be 

presented prior to its meeting in 
March which would include the 
Auditor’s final report and the 
management action plan; 

(ii) to note that the value of the 
transactions to be processed 
and a review of the necessary 
resource requirements would be 
detailed in the report to be 
submitted to the next meeting of 
the Panel on 2 March, 2009. 

 

At its meeting on 8 September, 
2009, the Committee agreed to 
request the City Chamberlain to 
report back on progress with the 
recommendations on a regular 
basis. 
 
This will be a standing item on the 
agenda for the near future. 
 
 

City 
Chamberlain 

02.03.10 02.03.10 

5. Audit and Risk 
08.09.09 
Article 5 

Tied Houses 
 
Upon considering the Property Sales 
Investigation follow-up report by 
Henderson Loggie the Committee 
resolved to instruct each Director to 
report to their Service Committee in 
the next cycle on how many tied 
houses were still in existence, where 
they were located and with a 
statement explaining the justification 
for being tied houses, and requested 

Proposed corporate register to be 
submitted to the Finance and 
Resources Committee on 28th 
January 2010 following each 
Director’s report to their Service 
Committee. 
 
It is not possible to report as 
instructed as three services 
(Enterprise, Planning & 
Infrastructure, Housing & 
Environment and Social work & 

Head of 
Resources 
Development 
and Delivery 

19.01.10  

P
a
g
e
 1

1



 4

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

the Finance and Resources 
Committee to take a corporate 
overview by producing a corporate 
register for reporting back to the Audit 
and Risk Committee thereafter. 
 

Wellbeing) have, despite being 
reminded, yet to report to their 
service committees.   It is 
anticipated that they will all be able 
to report to their respective 
committees either during this or the 
next committee cycle.   This will 
allow the report on the Corporate 
Register of Tied Houses to be 
reported to the Finance & 
Resources Committee and then to 
this committee. 

6. Audit and Risk 
08.09.09 
Article 7 
 

Internal Audit Staffing 
 
The Committee agreed (1) that 
officers progress an options appraisal 
with the involvement of staff and trade 
unions on the best value means of 
delivering the Internal Audit function; 
and (2) that a further report 
recommending the preferred option 
be submitted to the next meeting of 
the Committee.  
 

The Committee at its meeting on 3 
November 2009 instructed officers 
to report back at the next stage of 
progressing arrangements to 
outsource the functions of Internal 
Audit, with full detail on the 
financial, legal, human resource 
and procurement implications as 
well as a SWOT analysis.  
 
The Committee at its meeting on 
19th January 2010, instructed 
officers to continue to progress 
arrangements to outsource the 
functions of Internal Audit. 

Head of 
Performance 
Management 
and Quality 
Assurance 

  

7. Audit and Risk 
08.09.09 
Article 10 

N-SE/SA/0803 - Building Cleaning 
 
The Committee agreed that item 4.4.3 
be transferred to the Committee 
Business Statement, the wording of 
which is as follows:- 
 
“The Facilities Officer (Operations) 

This outstanding Internal Audit 
recommendation was transferred 
from Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure to the City 
Chamberlain on 3rd November 
2009.  
 
The implications of the IA 

City 
Chamberlain 
 
 

19.01.10  02.03.10 

P
a

g
e
 1

2



 5

No. Minute 
Reference 

 
 Committee Decision 

 
Update 
 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Report 
Due  

Report 
Expected 
(if known) 

should ensure that all overtime 
claimed by staff during a month is 
recorded on a single overtime claim 
form.” 
 
 

recommendation and the cost 
effectiveness of changes to the 
current processes will be 
undertaken and reported in a 
future Business statement. An 
initial discussion has taken place  
with the Internal Audit Manager   
 
Discussion has taken place with 
Internal Audit and with Payroll in 
regard to accommodating the 
audit recommendation. 
 
The outcome of this is that it 
cannot be achieved and therefore 
the recommendation is withdrawn 
with the agreement of the Internal 
Audit Manager. Internal Audit 
have as part of the discussion 
acknowledged that there is 
increased vigilance now applied 
within Payroll in regard to the 
detection of such cases and that 
they are satisfied with this. 
 
The Committee is requested to 
agree to this item of business now 
being deleted.  

 

P
a
g
e
 1

3



P
a

g
e
 1

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

        

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

  
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
  

2
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 

  

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 15



 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

   
1
 

T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 t

h
e
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 o
u

tp
u

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

  
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
d

a
te

 o
r 

w
o

rk
-

in
-p

ro
g

re
s
s

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

a
te

 
A

u
d

it
 &

 R
is

k
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

R
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t,

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d

 f
e

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 

1
8
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0

 
2

9
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0

 
2
0
1
0
-0

1
 

 
2

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

0
 

 
D

ra
ft

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
p

la
n
 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 
to

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 o

n
 2

9
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 
2

0
1

0
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n
t.

  
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 

&
 R

is
k
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
a
u

d
it
 p

la
n

 
2
7
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

0
 

W
IP

 
 

 
8

 J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

0
 

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

fo
r 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

in
te

ri
m

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 
a

n
d

 
M

a
rc

h
. 

F
ra

u
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 

A
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 
N

/A
 

 
N

/A
 

 
 

Page 16



 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

   
2
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
d

a
te

 o
r 

w
o

rk
-

in
-p

ro
g

re
s
s

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

a
te

 
A

u
d

it
 &

 R
is

k
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
u

d
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
N

F
I)

 
Q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

 

2
6
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0

 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

W
o
rk

 
is

 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 

to
 

fi
n

a
lis

e
 

th
e

 
N

F
I 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

A
u

d
it
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d
. 

T
h

e
 

fi
n

a
lis

e
d

 
q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 
w

ill
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri
s
e

 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 t

a
k
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
N

F
I 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
w

ill
 

b
e

 
u

s
e

d
 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e
 
N

F
I 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 

d
u
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
0

. 
 

F
o

llo
w

-u
p
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
le

ts
 

T
B

A
 

 
 

 
T

B
A

 
 

C
a

rr
ie

d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
fr

o
m

 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

p
la

n
. 

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d

. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
  

P
R

G
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
fo

rm
a

 r
e

tu
rn

 
3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

N
/A

 
 

 

Im
p

a
c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tu
d

ie
s
 

T
B

A
 

 
 

 

N
/A

 
 

 

Page 17



 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

   
3
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
d

a
te

 o
r 

w
o

rk
-

in
-p

ro
g

re
s
s

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

a
te

 
A

u
d

it
 &

 R
is

k
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 t

o
 

th
o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h

 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

  
(I

S
A

 2
6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
) 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

2
6
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1
0

 
 

 

A
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

2
6
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1
0

 
 

 

A
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

W
h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 (

W
G

A
) 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

N
/A

 
 

 

Y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

le
tt
e

r 
 

(i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
) 

3
0
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

2
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 

Page 18



 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

   
4
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
d

a
te

 o
r 

w
o

rk
-

in
-p

ro
g

re
s
s

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

a
te

 
A

u
d

it
 &

 R
is

k
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

H
B

/C
T

B
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

le
tt
e

r 
 

(i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
) 

 

T
B

A
 

 
 

 
T

B
A

 
 

 

g
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 
re

tu
rn

s
 

A
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 
 

 
N

/A
 

 

 

O
v

e
ra

ll
 C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

R
e

p
o
rt

 t
o

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
lle

r 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o
rt

 

3
0
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1
0

 
 

 
 

2
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

 
 

 

Page 19



 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
2

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

 

   
5
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
d

a
te

 o
r 

w
o

rk
-

in
-p

ro
g

re
s
s

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

F
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d

a
te

 
A

u
d

it
 &

 R
is

k
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
li

s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

2
0

0
8

/0
9
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

N
o

n
-D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 

(N
D

R
) 

G
ra

n
t 

C
la

im
 

2
6
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 
2
0
1
0

 
W

IP
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 
in

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 
th

e
 
a

u
d

it
 

w
o

rk
. 

 D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
 o

f 
2

6
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0

1
0
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t.

 

  

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aberdeen City Council 

Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan 
and Fee Proposal 2009/10 

 

External Audit Report No: 2010-01 

Draft Issued:  29 January 2010 

Final Issued:  18 February 2010 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 21



 

Contents 
 

  

Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council   

   Page 
 
 
Executive Summary   1  
 
 
Audit Framework    2  7 
 
 
Audit Approach    8  10 
 
 
Planned Audit Outputs and Fee Proposal   11  13 
 
 
Audit Team    14  15 
  
 
Appendix I  Respective Responsibilities 16 
 
Appendix II  Grant Claims included in Fee Proposal 17 
 
Appendix III  Statutory Performance Indicators 18 
 
Appendix IV  Documents Reviewed 19 
 
Appendix V  National and Local Risk Analysis and Plan 20 - 36 

 
Appendix VI  Acronyms 37 
 
 
 
Restriction on Use  
This report has been prepared in accordance with our responsibilities under International Standards 

 Code of Audit Practice for the audit of Aberdeen City Council.  
 
We take this opportunity to remind you that: 
 

 This report has been prepared for the sole use of Aberdeen City Council and its Audit and Risk 
Committee and will be shared with the Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland 

 

 No responsibility is assumed by us to any other person who may choose to rely on it for his or 
her own purposes 

 

 To a certain extent the content of this report comprises general information that has been 
provided by, or is based on discussions with management and staff at the Council.  Except to 
the extent necessary for the purpose of the audit, this information has not been independently 
verified. 

 
 

Page 22



 

Executive Summary 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

1 

 

Introduction and Background  
 
1. We have been re-

auditors for the 5 year period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2011.  This is our overall plan for 
the fourth year of our appointment.  Our audit is governed by our letter of appointment, the 

Local Government Sector Plan. 
 

2. This document outlines: 

 our audit framework 

 our audit approach 

 the planned audit outputs and our proposed fee 

 our audit team 
 
3. Background and planning information has been gathered through discussion with the City 

Chamberlain, the Internal Audit Manager and other senior staff, and a review of the 
documents listed at Appendix IV.  In gathering this information we have considered the Sector 
Plan, Priorities and Risk Framework document (PRF) and planning guidance issued to us by 
Audit Scotland for 2009/10.  The plan and PRF are available on their website www.audit-
scotland.gov.uk. 
 
  

Summary of Planned Audit Work  
 

Table 1: Planned Audit Outputs  
Overall Planning 

 Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan and Fee Proposal  

Governance 

 Financial Statements Audit Plan (FSAP) 

 Fraud Returns 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Questionnaire 

 Follow-up Review  School Lets 

Performance 

 PRG Overview Report Proforma Return 
 Impact Assessments  National Studies 

Finance 

 Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged With Governance (ISA 260 Report) 

 Audit opinion on financial statements 
 Audit opinion on Whole of Government Accounts 
 Year-end Management Letter if required # 
 HB/CTB Subsidy Management Letter if required # 
  

Overall Conclusion 

 Report to Members and the Controller of Audit  Annual Report 

 # Outputs will only be required where there are significant issues to report arising from audit work. 
 
 

Proposed Fee   
 
4. Based on the work we assess is required to discharge our audit responsibilities the total 

proposed fee for the 2009/10 audit is £491,875. 
 
 

Acknowledgements  
 
5. We would like to take this opportunity to thank all the officers within the Council who assisted 

us in gathering information for this plan. 

Page 23



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

2 

Introduction 
 
6. Our audit framework is set by our letter of appointment, the Local Government Acts, (primarily 

Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973), auditing standards, Code of Audit 
Practice, Local Government Sector Plan and ad hoc guidance issued by Audit Scotland. 

 
7. This framework provides local authorities with an audit model that is wider than simply 

providing assurance on the financial statements and the internal control environment.  This 
wider model covers finance, governance and performance.   

 
  

Code of Audit Practice 
 
8. This plan takes account of the Code of Audit Practice (the Code) published by Audit Scotland 

in March 2007.  This year we have not included full details of our audit responsibilities under 
the Code in our plan as this was included in previous years.  The Code is available on Audit 
Scotla www.audit-scotland.gov.uk.  Alternatively, we can supply you with a copy 
of the Code. 

 
 

 
 
9.  Audit Scotland has issued a statement on audited bodie

relation to all aspects covered by the audit process.  The Code incorporates this statement 
into each section for easy reference.  Attention is drawn to these relative responsibilities and a 
summary is included at Appendix I. 

 
 

Audit Objectives 
 
10. Our objectives identified in the Code are summarised in Table 2. 
 

 
Key Area 
 

bjective 
 

Main Audit Output 
 

Financial 
statements  
 

statements as required by the relevant authorities for 
the local government sector. 
 
 

Audit opinion in 
financial 
statements. 
ISA260 Report. 

Corporate 
governance 
arrangements 

Review and report on, as required by relevant 
orporate 

governance arrangements in relation to systems of 
internal control; the prevention and detection of 
fraud and irregularity; standards of conduct, and 
prevention and detection of corruption; and the 

. 
 

FSAP, ISA260 
Report, Annual 
Report. 
  

Performance 
management 

Review and report on, as required by relevant 

arrangements for securing Best Value; complying 
with its community planning duties; aspects of 
managing its performance in relation to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources; 
and for preparing and publishing statutory 
performance indicators (SPI). 
 

Annual Report. 
 

  

Page 24



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

3 

Planning Guidance 
 
11. nning guidance for 2009/10 defines the core audit as the work that Audit 

Scotland provided for when setting the indicative fees for local authorities and specifies the 
following:   

 

 P s (and any 
opinions on consolidation packs / whole of government accounts returns) by 30 
September 2010 
 

 Provide an annual report on the audit addressed to the Council Members and the 
Controller of Audit by 31 October 2010 
 

 Communicate audit plans to those charged with governance 
 

 Provision of reports to management, as appropriate, in respect of our corporate 
governance responsibilities in the Code (including our involvement in the NFI) 
 

 Submit fraud returns to Audit Scotland 
 

 Certify grant claims (including HB/CTB Subsidy Claim) submitted by the Council that have 
been approved for audit by Audit Scotland.  Appendix II lists the grants included in our 
2009/10 audit fee 
 

 D statutory 
performance information in accordance nnual Direction.  
For 2009/10 there is no requirement to provide an assessment of the reliability of 
individual SPIs to Audit Scotland  

 

 Provide existing evidence and intelligence for, and participate in, shared risk assessment 
(SRA) processes leading to the preparation of a three year rolling Assurance and 
Improvement Plan for each council and a national scrutiny plan.  This includes the results 
of follow-up on c ementing existing Best Value improvement plans 
 

 Contribute to Best Value audits and other scrutiny responses agreed through the SRA 
process 
 

 Undertake other work requested by Audit Scotland (eg exchanging information and 
intelligence about council performance, supporting the impact of national performance 
audit studies and contributing evidence for the local authority overview report). 

 
12. Any audit work beyond the core audit will incur an additional fee. 
 
 

Page 25



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

4 

Shared Risk Assessment and Joint Scrutiny Planning 
 
13. 

includes the following information: 
 

 Following the publication of the Crerar report in September 2007, the Scottish 
stablishing a simplified and coherent approach 

to delivering local government scrutiny.  All scrutiny bodies that engage with local 
government are working to establish a shared assessment of the risks in each council and 
to develop a range of proportionate approaches in response to the risk assessment. 
 

 Local Area Networks (LANs) have been established at each council.  These bring together 
the local scrutiny representatives in a systematic way, with the common aims of joint 
scrutiny scheduling and planning, shared risk assessment and the delivery of a single 
corporate assessment through the Best Value 2 (BV2) audit process.  
external auditors we are key members of the LAN for the Council. 

 

 The role of LAN representatives is to ensure that relevant data collected from councils and 
other sources by their organisation is analysed and brought to the LAN for discussion. All 
LAN members will discuss and agree a shared risk assessment (SRA) of the council and 
identify a proportionate scrutiny response. 
 

 All LAN members are expected to contribute to the drafting of the three year rolling 
Assurance and Improvement Plan (AIP) for the Council and to participate in ongoing 
evaluation and training.  The AIP sets out the SRA of the Council and the proposed 
scrutiny response.  It includes all scrutiny activity at corporate and service level but 
excludes scrutiny activity at individual unit level, such as school, residential home or day 
care centre.   

 

 The LAN will agree what the appropriate scrutiny response should be over the next three 
years (for 2010/11 to 2012/13), based on the results of the SRA.  This should be 
proportionate and aligned to the assessed level of risk.  It may include specific audit 
exercises, including reviews of aspects of governance or local studies, or other work to be 

exercises of this type without reference to the LAN. 
 

14. As detailed earlier in paragraph 11 part of the core audit work for 2009/10 is a requirement to 
participate in the SRA processing leading to the preparation of the three year rolling AIP 
covering 2010/11 to 2012/13.  Our plan and proposed fee for 2009/10 cover a transitional year 
and encompass the core audit work outlined at paragraph 11.  This will include a review of the 
restated accounts for IFRS when available.  The planned work has been discussed with the 
LAN lead. 
 

15. The first meeting of the LAN for Aberdeen City was held in November 2009, with a further 
meeting in January 2010, where the SRA and AIP was discussed and drafted.  Following a 
national review of the AIPs for all 32 councils, the Council should receive its AIP in April 2010. 
 
 
 

 

Page 26



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

5 

Best Value and Community Planning 
 
16. The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) introduced statutory requirements 

for both authorities and auditors in relation to Best Value and Community Planning.  By April 
2009 the Accounts Commission had completed the first round of Best Value (BV) audits in all 
32 councils in Scotland.  In October 2009, the Commission published its report Making an 
Impact: An Overview of the Audits of Best Value and Community Planning 2004-09.   

 
17. The Accounts Commission is reviewing its approach to BV audits and is testing its revised 

approaches through five pathfinder audits. Following completion of these pathfinders, the 
revised approach (BV2), will be finalised and applied to a future programme of audits 
commencing from May 2010.  

 
18. The timing and coverage of full BV2 audits will be agreed as part of the AIP.  A key 

component of the SRA will be the extent to which implementation of any BV improvement plan 
has been progressed.  As the local auditors we will continue to be responsible for conducting 
follow-up reviews to assess progress against agreed improvement priorities which will be 
reported in our annual report and feed into future risk assessments.  

 
19. Aberdeen City ion 

requested a follow-up report on progress, which was published in July 2009.  This follow-up 
work was carried out in conjunction with SWIA and HMIE follow-up activity.  The progress 
report concluded that: 

 
the Council has taken prompt action in implementing plans to address the issues highlighted 

wide-ranging and significant new arrangements to support improvement.  The unaudited 
financial statements for 2008/09 show a better than expected outturn, but the Council still 
faces a challenging financial situation, which is exacerbated by the current economic climate. 
The full impact of the action taken to date has yet to flow through and the council understands 
that there is still a long way to go before it can demonstrate the attributes of a Best Value 

 
 
 

Single Outcome Agreement 
 
20. The BV2 audit approach takes full account of Single Outcome Agreements (SOAs).  Audit 

Council and its partners are taking on: 
 

 developing governance and accountability arrangements to support SOAs  
 

 ensuring explicit links are made between high-level SOA outcomes and more detailed 
service-level outcomes, outputs and activities 

 

 ensuring SOAs are supported by robust resource planning arrangements 
  

 ensuring SOAs are supported by robust performance management and reporting 
 

 reporting progress towards SOA outcomes to the Scottish Government, in line with 
guidance on annual reporting 

 

 undertaking Public Performance Reporting (PPR) on progress towards SOA outcomes, 
including linking SOA outcomes and indicators with other forms of PPR such as SPIs. 

 
21. We will report our findings in our Annual Report. 

Page 27



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

6 

Performance Reporting and Statutory Performance Indicators  
 
22. The 2008 Direction represents a significant shift in approach to the statutory performance 

indicators (SPIs) in recognition of the changing environment in which local authorities are 
operating.  Significantly fewer specified indicators are required to be reported although 
councils are encouraged to select appropriate measures, reflecting their priorities, from their 
mainstream performance management and reporting arrangements, covering corporate and 
individual service performance.   
 

23. The audit approach has been revised in recognition of this shift and new audit guidance was 
issued by Audit Scotland in January 2010.  We are no longer required to assess the reliability 
of individual indicators or to provide an opinion on a year-end return to Audit Scotland.  Our 
emphasis will be on the arrangements and systems that the Council uses to generate 
performance results and consequent reports.  Our work may include some sampling of data to 
test reliability, but 
performance information.  We plan to place reliance on Internal Audit work in this area. 
 

24. The statutory deadline for councils to place details of SPIs in the public domain by 30 

arrangements are in place for the collection and publication, and our duty to review and report 

and reliable. 
 

25. The findings of our audit will be included in our Annual Report, together with commentary on 
rmance. 

 
26. Our 2008/09 Annual Report included comments on a few of the 2008/09 SPIs published by 

the Council.  National rankings for the 2008/09 SPIs were published by Audit Scotland in 
ppendix III. 

 
27. In November 2009, Council officers submitted a detailed analysis of the 2008/09 SPIs to the 

Corporate Policy and Performance Committee.  
performance management system, each Service will be reporting to the relevant Committee of 
the Council showing performance against SPIs.  This will include recommendations for actions 
for further improvement.  A further report was submitted to January 2010 meeting of the 
Corporate Policy and Performance Committee, w
an all-Scotland context.   

 
 

Page 28



 

Audit Framework  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

7 

Audit Scotland National Studies 
  
28.  Audit Scotland undertakes a number of centrally directed performance audits each year.  The 

Code directs us to participate in these at a local level, if required.  One aspect of this 
participation during 2009/10 will be the presentation to the Council (where appropriate) of local 
information in relation to individual national studies.  This is a developing aspect of national 
reporting and will be discussed further with officers and the Audit and Risk Committee in due 
course. 

 
29. Audit Scotland planning guidance directs us to provide information on how the Council has 

responded to national reports three months and one year following publication, with the nature 
and level of information required varying across different studies and different bodies. 

 
30. Details of reports on Audit Scotland national studies published between November 2008 and 

August 2009 were included in Appendix IV to our report 2009/08 Report to Members and the 
Controller of Audit 2008/09.  One-year follow-up will be undertaken during 2009/10.   

  
31. The following reports on centrally directed studies have been published since August 2009 or 

are due for publication in 2010: 
  

 Sco  

 Environmental Overview (published January 2010) 

 Delivering Efficiencies 

 Physical Recreation Services  

 Managing Unit Costs 

 Looked after Children in Residential Settings 

 Councillors and Officers:  Working Together in Local Government 

 Road maintenance: a follow-up report 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

Audit Approach  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

8 

Audit Approach 
 
32. We plan our audit to meet the objectives discussed at paragraph 10 under guidance from 

Audit Scotland and in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable auditing 
standards.   

 
33. Our approach is risk-based and designed to be robust, efficient, challenging and fair.  Key 

features of our approach are the integration of work for the finance, governance and 
performance strands of our remit; a focus on key national and local issues and associated 
risks; financial statement audit procedures that maximise assurance from existing internal 
control processes; and maximum reliance on internal audit work. 

 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

34. We begin by gaining an understanding of the key national and local issues facing the Council 
and the associated risks.  We assess the likelihood of the risk occurring and the impact this 
could have on delivery of services and the financial position.  We then assess the control 
arrangements that the Council has in place to manage these risks, and whether the risk has 

-making, 

planning guidance and PRF contribute to the identification of issues to be considered in this 
stage of our work. 

 
35. Information is gathered from a series of interviews with senior officers and a review of key 

Council documents.  We also obtain information from the Coun
through discussion and review of relevant reports.  (See Appendix IV for documents 
reviewed). 

 
36. The key national 

and Sector Plan, are summarised in Table 7 at Appendix V, together with the associated audit 
actions and outputs.  Our 2008/09 PRF Report (report 2009/02) reviewed these risk areas.  As 
part of our 2009/10 planning, we have had discussions with officers who have confirmed that 
they believe the Council has taken action or has plans in place to mitigate all of the risks 
identified in Table 7.  Table 8 at Appendix V summarises specific local risks and our proposed 
audit action.   

 
37. During 2009/10, our ongoing monitoring will include: 
 

 Attendance at Council and Committee meetings, together with review of reports and 
minutes 

 Attendance at the Audit and Risk Committee 

 Discussion with officers 

 Reliance on internal audit 

 Follow-up of National Studies 
 
38. Proposed timings for final reports and the Audit and Risk Committee meeting to which these 

will be presented are summarised in Table 4 at paragraph 57. 
 
 

Financial Control Evaluation 
 
39. The financial control environment will be considered at an early stage of our work to update 

our documentation of the key controls that can be relied upon for the production of figures for 
the financial statements.   

Page 30



 

Audit Approach  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

9 

40. Where possible we will seek to place reliance on the controls tested by internal audit where 
they report that the controls are working effectively.  Where internal audit do not perform tests 
on key controls we will reassess our audit work and either test the operation of the key 
controls or carry out substantive testing as part of the financial statements audit.  Our findings 
will be reported in our Financial Statements Audit Plan.  

 
 

Reliance on Internal Audit Work 
 
41. The Code directs us to maintain effective co-ordination with internal audit and place the 

maximum possible reliance on their work.  In accordance with ISA 610  Considering the 
Work of Internal Audit, we have reviewed the framework for the provision of internal audit 
services.  Our review included consideration of compliance with 2006 Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom.   
 

42. In previous years we established that we could place reliance on their work, although there 
have been issues with resources that have impacted on delivery of planned work. For 
2008/09, an external firm was appointed to carry out a series of audits to ensure delivery of 
the agreed audit plan.  For 2009/10, a similar approach is being taken, therefore we will need 
to update our assessment when this work is complete. 

 
43. We review all internal audit reports and consider their findings for the performance and 

governance aspects of our audit.  From our review of the internal audit plan for 2009/10, we 
have identified specific reviews on which we will seek to place reliance for our audit of the 
financial statements and for the performance and governance aspects of the audit as noted in 
Table 3. 
 
Table 3  Reliance on Internal Audit Work 
Financial Statements Performance and Governance 

 Budget Management Process  

 Financial reporting readiness 

 Inspectorate improvement plans follow-up 
work 

 Bank Reconciliations  Governance Review 

 General ledger feeder systems   Risk Management Framework 

 Other general ledger account 
reconciliations 

 Contract Management Process  

 Investment Appraisal Process 

 Treasury Management  External Management Information/ SPIs 

 Accounts receivable and collections  Business Continuity Planning 

 Housing Capital Expenditure and repairs 
budgets 

 Marischal College  

 Arms length organisations (trusts) 

 IT Asset Management  IT Security 

 IT General Controls   ICT Options 

 CRM/ Parking Fines  

 
44. Further areas may be identified following completion of our initial financial control evaluation 

(see para 39 and 40 above). 
 

45. We will perform detailed file reviews in order to obtain the necessary evidence to enable us to 
place reliance upon internal audit work.  We will report the extent of our actual reliance and 
the level of assurance gained in our Financial Statements Audit Plan.   Our audit approach 
and our audit fee are dependent on the availability by 31 May 2010 of those reports on which 
we plan to place reliance and upon the expectation that the reviews will find Council systems 
to be at least adequate. 
 

46. The findings of our review of internal audit work will be reported in our Financial Statements 
Audit Plan.  Further work will be reported in our Annual Report if required. 
 
 

Page 31



 

Audit Approach  
  

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

10 

Reliance on Work of Other Inspection Bodies 
 
47. 

through co-ordination amongst auditors, inspectors and other scrutiny bodies.  We therefore 
place reliance on the reported results of the work of statutory inspectorates in relation to 
corporate or service performance and may monitor progress with implementation of action 
plans resulting from these reviews.  Our reliance will also be informed by the LAN and shared 
risk assessment as detailed at paragraph 13 above. 

 
 

Communication and Reporting 
 

48.  Auditing standards require us to communicate throughout the audit with those charged with 
governance.  We have agreed that such communication will be through the Audit and Risk 
Committee.  For matters relating specifically to the audit of the financial statements, 
communication will be with the Committee together with the City Chamberlain.  

 
49. The main means of communication with Members during the course of the year will be 

through our reports and our attendance at the Audit and Risk Committee.  We will also attend 
a selection of meetings of the Community Planning Partnership, the Council and committees.  
Our formal reporting to all Members will be through our annual report produced at the 
conclusion of each audit year. 

 
50. We will communicate regularly with officers throughout the audit year to plan and conclude 

issues that emerge.  This communication should be two-way, and we encourage officers to 
have early discussions with us on any issues that may give rise to audit comment at a later 
date.  We also welcome feedback on our audit approach.   

 
51. Throughout our audit, we identify areas for improvement and encourage compliance with 

accepted best practice.  At the conclusion of each project we will discuss our findings and 
recommendations for action with management prior to issuing a draft report, which will include 
our recommendations within an action plan.  Recommendations will be graded by importance. 

 
52. A draft report will be issued to allow the Council officers to confirm the factual accuracy of the 

report and to provide a response to any recommendations within an action plan.  This includes 
details of the responsible officer and reasonable timeframes to be allocated for each of the 
agreed actions.  Once this is completed, the final report will be issued to lead officers and 
submitted to the next Audit and Risk Committee.  Our proposed reporting timetable is included 
in Table 4 at paragraph 57. 

 
  
 
 
 

Page 32



Planned Audit Outputs and    

Fee Proposal 
 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

11 

Reliance on Council Action and Working Papers  
 
53. In assessing our audit activity we have sought to place reliance on internal audit work where 

key controls are tested.  Following on from previous years
and current action plans we expect that adequate records and working papers will generally 
be available as audit evidence and that officers will respond to requests for information within 
a reasonable timeframe.  Our Financial Statements Audit Plan will identify specific supporting 
working papers that we expect to be available with the draft financial statements.     

 
 

Planned Audit Activity and Outputs  
 
54. Appendix V records the planned audit activity that we assess is required to discharge our audit 

responsibilities. 
 
55. Table 4 summarises our timetable for the outputs in which we plan to report our audit activity.  

The outputs highlighted # in Table 4 will only be required where there are significant issues to 
report arising from our audit work.  
 

56. We will monitor our progress against our plan and report this to each meeting of the Audit and 
Risk Committee. 
 

57. To inform our work we will have regular meetings with officers, and review minutes of 
meetings and reports presented to the Council and its committees.  As we identify new issues 
we will bring these to the attention of management and the Audit and Risk Committee, where 
appropriate. 

 
Table 4: Timetable for Planned Audit Outputs  

 
Planned outputs 
 

Date of final 
report 

Audit & Risk 
Committee 

date 
Planning   

 Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan and Fee Proposal 18/02/10 02/03/10 
Governance   

 Financial Statements Audit Plan 27/05/10 08/06/10 

 Fraud returns 
 NFI Questionnaire 

 
26/02/10 

N/A 
N/A 

 Follow-up Review  School Lets TBA TBA 

Performance   

 PRG Overview Report Proforma Return 30/09/10 N/A 

 Impact assessments  National Studies TBA TBA 

Finance   

 Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged
 With Governance    ISA 260 Report 

Sept 2010 26/10/10 

 Audit opinion on financial statements 30/09/10 N/A 

 Audit opinion on the Whole of Government Accounts 30/09/10 N/A 

 Year-end Management Letter if required # 
 HB/CTB Subsidy Management Letter # 

29/10/10 
TBA 

02/12/10 
TBA 

 s  
 (including HB/CTB subsidy) 

As required N/A 

Overall Conclusion   

 Report to Members and the Controller of Audit  
  Annual Report 

29/10/10 02/12/10 

 (TBA  dates still to be arranged) 

Page 33



Planned Audit Outputs and    

Fee Proposal 
 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

12 

Determining the Annual Audit Fee  
 
58. The audit of the Council will   The agreed 

fee for the Council audit requires to be set within the indicative fee range notified by Audit 
Scotland to the Chief Executive in November 2009.   

 
59. The indicative fee range for the Council in 2009/10 is £446,950 to £506,850.  This includes 

 
 

60. Placement within the range depends on the level of work we consider requires to be 
undertaken and is influenced by the number and level of risks facing the Council.  It assumes 
that internal audit reports and other working papers will be available timeously and be of 
sufficient quality, and that no major revisions are required to the financial statements.  It also 
assumes, following on from discussions in previous years, 
review of the accounts completion process is rigorous and robust.  Our audit activity and 
ultimately the level of fee may require to be reassessed where this is not the case. 

 
61. For 2009/10 particular influences on the placement in the range are:  

 

 implementation of IFRIC 12 principles (relating to PFI/ PPP accounting) in 2009/10 

 preparation for the introduction of IFRS compliant accounts in 2010/11 and the need to 
restate the balance sheet at 1 April 2009 on an IFRS basis 

 input into the SRA process 

 
national studies 

 the new SPI arrangements for 2009/10 

 attendance at Council and other meetings which requires a more senior mix of staff 

 .   
 
62. From our risk assessment and our assessment of the skill mix that we believe is required to 

complete the identified programme of work and deliver the outputs noted in Table 4, our total 
proposed fee for 2009/10 is £491,875.  The fee assumes eight days for the IFRS work.  
Additional work beyond eight days will result in an additional fee.     

 
Table 5 - Proposed Fee  

   
Financial year   2009/10 

  £ 
Proposed audit fee   314,475 
   
Audit Scotland fixed charge  177,400 

Total proposed fee   491,875 
  ====== 
   

 
 

Page 34



Planned Audit Outputs and    

Fee Proposal 
 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

13 

Arrangements for Additional Audit Work  
 
63. Where we are required to undertake work that was not provided for within the initial audit plan, 

the agreed fee may be revised, within the indicative range, in conjunction with the Council.  
Fees outwith the indicative range require express agreement from Audit Scotland.   

 
64. Indicative fees do not include additional work, such as PFI/PPP projects.  Fees for additional 

work will be agreed separately following approval from Audit Scotland.   
 
65. Audit Scotland, on behalf of the Accounts Commission, will on occasion request us to 

investigate correspondence from the public and agree an additional fee for the initial work.  
This will be financed through the Audit Scotland fixed charge.  Where further work is directed 
by Audit Scotland an additional charge to the Council may be required.  This will be discussed 
with management should this occur. 

Page 35



 

Audit Team  
 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

14 

66. The audit team have experience of the public sector, and local authority sector in particular, 
and have developed an understanding of the issues faced by the Council.  Table 6 provides 
contact details and responsibility of each of the key team members.  

  
Table 6: Key Team Members  

 

   
Team member 
 

Role and responsibilities Contact details  

Cathie Wyllie 
Engagement Partner  

The audit team is headed by Cathie 
Wyllie as engagement partner.  Cathie 
is responsible for the overall delivery of 
our services to the Council and liaison 
with the Audit and Risk Committee. 
 

Tel: 01382 594784 
cbw@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

Ian Robbie 
Consulting Partner  

Ian is responsible for follow-up work on 
Non-Domestic Rates and other ad-hoc 
issues from previous years.   

Tel: 01224 322 100 
ijr@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

   
Margaret Richardson  
Audit Director 

Margaret is responsible for the overall 
delivery of the financial statements 
audit.   

Tel: 01382 594786 
mar@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

   
Karlyn Watt 
Manager  

Karlyn is responsible for managing the 
day to day delivery of the audit and will 
be the main point of contact for financial 
statements, best value and performance 
audit.  She will also be the main contact 
for grant audit work. 
 

Tel: 01224 322 100 
kaw@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

David Archibald 
Manager 

David is the main point of contact for 
NFI and SPI work. 

Tel 01382 594748 
dma@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

   
Kenneth Brooker 
Assistant Manager 

Kenneth is responsible for managing the 
delivery of the financial statements audit 
in relation to Revenues, Council Tax and 
Housing Benefit, and the review of the 
Subsidy Claim. 
 

Tel: 0131 226 0201 
kib@hendersonloggie.co.uk 

Steve Cartwright 
Partner 

Steve is available as an independent 
partner to deal with any comments or 
complaints. 

Tel: 01382 200055 
scc@hendersonloggie.co.uk 
 

 
 

  

 
  

Page 36



 

Audit Team 
 

  

Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and Fee Proposal for 2009/10 for Aberdeen City Council  

15 

Confirmation of Independence 
 
67. Ethical Standard 1, Integrity, Objectivity and Independence, issued by the Auditing Practices 

Board (APB), requires that external auditors should ensure that those charged with 
governance are appropriately informed on a timely basis of all significant facts and matters 

 
 
68. We confirm that Henderson Loggie has procedures in place to ensure compliance with APB 

Ethical Standards.  We confirm that in our professional judgement we are independent of 
Aberdeen City Council and our objectivity and independence have not been compromised in 
any way.  There are no relationships between Henderson Loggie and the Council, its 
members and senior officers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity and 
independence.  Henderson Loggie does not (and will not) provide any consultancy or non 
audit services to the Council.   

 
 

 
 

Page 37



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 
 R

e
s

p
e

c
ti

v
e

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

 
  

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

1
6
 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
o

rs
 

 E
a

c
h

 
p

u
b

lic
 

s
e

c
to

r 
b

o
d

y
 

is
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 

fo
r 

th
e

 
w

a
y
 

in
 

w
h

ic
h

 
it
 

h
a
s
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 i
ts

 s
te

w
a

rd
s
h

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n
d

s
. 

 S
te

w
a

rd
s
h

ip
 i
s
 a

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

o
th

 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
s
te

w
a
rd

s
h

ip
 

re
s
ts

 
u

p
o

n
 

b
o
th

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
o

f 
a

 
p

u
b

lic
 

s
e

c
to

r 
b

o
d

y
. 

 T
h

a
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
is

 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
d

 
p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
b

y
 
th

e
 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
o

u
n

d
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
p

la
n
n

in
g

, 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l,
 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 
a

n
d

 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
, 

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

 It
 

is
 

o
u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
to

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 
a

n
 

in
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 b

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

it
s
 s

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

to
 e

n
a
b

le
 u

s
 t

o
 

g
iv

e
 

a
n

 
a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
th

a
t 

th
o
s
e

 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
d

. 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
 O

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 

fo
rm

 
a

n
 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

o
p

in
io

n
, 

b
a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
, 

o
n

 
th

e
 

a
b
s
tr

a
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
a

t 
o

p
in

io
n
 t

o
 y

o
u
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

re
fl
e

c
ts

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 S

O
R

P
, 

a
n
d

 w
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 i
f,

 i
n

 o
u

r 
o

p
in

io
n
, 

it
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t.

  
W

e
 

a
re

 
n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c
o

v
e

rs
 
a

ll 
ri
s
k
s
 
a

n
d

 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
o

r 
fo

rm
 

a
n
 

o
p
in

io
n
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
 o

r 
it
s
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
. 

      

                

Page 38



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

I 
 G

ra
n

t 
C

la
im

s
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 F
e

e
 P

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

1
7
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

 S
u

b
s
id

y
 C

la
im

 
 N

o
n

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 R
e
tu

rn
 

 C
ri
m

in
a
l 
J
u

s
ti
c
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

 A
llo

w
a

n
c
e

 
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
F

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 U
n

fu
n
d

e
d

 E
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti
o

n
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

Page 39



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

II
 

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

1
8
 

T
h

e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
is

 
d

ra
w

n
 
fr

o
m

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 
p

u
b
lis

h
e
d

 
in

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0

9
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 
re

la
te

s
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 
w

h
ic

h
 
w

e
re

 
ra

n
k
e

d
. 

  
Q

1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

Q
4
 

T
o

ta
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 
2
 

4
 

2
 

8
 

1
6
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

2
 

5
 

3
 

0
 

1
0
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

5
 

1
 

2
 

4
 

1
2
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

0
 

1
 

2
 

2
 

5
 

 
9
 

3
 

3
 

4
 

1
9
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

2
 

5
 

2
 

3
 

1
2
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
v
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

1
 

2
 

2
 

0
 

5
 

R
o

a
d
s
 &

 L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 

3
 

5
 

0
 

1
 

9
 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

2
 

1
 

1
 

2
 

6
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

In
d

ic
a

to
rs

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 

2
6
 

2
7
 

1
7
 

2
4
 

9
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

%
 i
n

 m
id

d
le

 q
u

a
rt

ile
s
 (

Q
2

 +
 Q

3
) 

 
4

6
.8

1
%

 
 

 
      

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 r
a

n
k

e
d

 i
n

 T
o

p
 3

 f
o

r 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 
 

6
 

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

H
e

a
d

 a
n

d
 D

e
p
u

ty
 H

e
a

d
 T

e
a
c
h

e
rs

 t
h
a

t 
a
re

 w
o

m
e

n
 

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
te

a
c
h

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 i
n

 a
ll 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
o

 a
re

 w
o

m
e

n
 

 P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
c
a

re
 c

lie
n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c
a

re
 

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
a

s
io

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
te

rm
in

a
ls

 a
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 /

 u
s
a

g
e

s
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

fu
n
d

e
d

 o
r 

p
a
rt

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

   N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 r
a

n
k

e
d

 i
n

 B
o

tt
o

m
 3

 f
o

r 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 
2
 

 R
e

s
p

it
e

 c
a

re
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 0

 -
 1

7
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
: 

T
o

ta
l 

h
o
u

rs
 d

a
y
ti
m

e
 r

e
s
p

it
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u

rs
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

rd
e

rs
 

  

Page 40



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

V
 

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 R
e

v
ie

w
e
d

 
  

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

1
9
 

A
u

d
it

 S
c

o
tl

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

  
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

P
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 R
is

k
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
P

R
F

) 
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

S
e

c
to

r 
P

la
n

 2
0

0
8
-2

0
1

1
 

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
b

u
lle

ti
n

s
 

 T
h

e
 S

O
R

P
 

 

 
 R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
lle

r 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 IS

A
2

6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 P

R
F

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 F

o
llo

w
-u

p
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

a
le

s
 I

n
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 F

o
llo

w
-U

p
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 Y

e
a
r-

e
n

d
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
2

0
0
8

/0
9

 
 H

B
/C

T
B

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e

tt
e

r 
(2

0
0

7
/0

8
 A

u
d

it
) 

    

O
th

e
r 

B
o

d
ie

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  
 

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0
9

 
 J
o

in
t 

In
te

ri
m

 
F

o
llo

w
-T

h
ro

u
g

h
 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 
to

 
P

ro
te

c
t 

C
h

ild
re

n
 
a

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 A

re
a
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0
9

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 F

o
llo

w
-U

p
 R

e
p

o
rt

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0

9
 

 M
u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n

c
y
 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 
F

o
llo

w
 
U

p
 
S

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e

 
M

is
u

s
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 
in

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

2
0
0
9

 
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

  
 

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

2
0

0
9

-2
0

1
0

 
 

 
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e

a
r 

b
u
d

g
e
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e

  
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e

a
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
p

a
p

e
rs

 
 V

a
ri

o
u
s
 M

in
u

te
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 i
ts

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
  

 L
o
c
a

l 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
 In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
, 

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 

o
rd

e
rs

, 
o

rd
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 
o

f 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
, 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 e
tc

 
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

is
k
 R

e
g

is
te

rs
 

 B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

 P
u

b
lic

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 N
e

w
s
le

tt
e

rs
 

Page 41



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
0
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

o
u

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
: 

a
tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
; 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 m
in

u
te

s
; 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
; 

re
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
; 

a
n

d
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
. 

 T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 V
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 D

ir
e

c
ti

o
n

 
 A

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

, 
th

e
 S

in
g

le
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 

m
a

y
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 a

n
d

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

la
n

s
. 

 P
R

F
 5

7
 

 T
h

e
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d
 o

r 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 

a
 

g
o
o

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

o
f 

th
e
 

v
ie

w
s
 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e

rs
 

o
r 

th
e
 

n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 P
R

F
 5

7
 

 w
o

rk
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 m

a
y 

h
a

v
e

 a
n
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 

e
ff

ic
a

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 P
R

F
 6

1
 

 If
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

o
r 

le
a
d

 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
in

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 

a
re

a
s
 

s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

P
R

F
 6

2
 

 

   O
n

g
o

in
g

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

  re
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 

w
h

ic
h

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

W
e

 
w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 i

n
te

ra
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a

t 
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e

 a
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 
  

   
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

Page 42



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
1
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 
a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
/ 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 T
h

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 
n

o
t 

b
e

 
fu

lf
ill

in
g
 
it
s
 
d

u
ti
e

s
 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 
L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

in
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

 
A

c
t 

2
0
0

3
 

to
 

in
it
ia

te
, 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 
a

n
d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

C
P

P
).

  
P

R
F

 7
0

 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 
n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
le

a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
a

re
 
c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 
to

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 
a

n
d

 
h

a
v
e

 
a

 
s
h

a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 
re

fl
e

c
ts

 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
. 

 P
R

F
 7

8
 

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

o
o

rl
y
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 o

r 
in

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 l

in
k
e

d
 

to
 w

id
e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 e

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

  
P

R
F

 8
3

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

la
c
k
 

c
le

a
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
lin

k
in

g
 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i

n
 i

n
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g
re

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 
 P

R
F

 8
7

 
  

    O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

 re
p
o

rt
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o
ri

ti
e

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 k

e
y
 p

la
n
s
.  

 

   
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

Page 43



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
2
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

  T
h
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

s
o
u
n
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

b
y 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 P

R
F

 9
3
 

        T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a

y 
n
o
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

 
D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

m
a
y
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y,
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  

P
R

F
 

1
0
0
 

  T
h
e
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 

a
n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 

fo
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 in

te
n
d
e

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

o
r 

lim
it
a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
n
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
m

m
itm

e
n
t 

to
 

s
u
c
h
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

o
r 

th
e
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

in
 

w
h

ic
h
 

th
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 
b
e
 c

le
a
r.

  
P

R
F

 1
0
4
/5

 
 

    a
u
th

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d

 a
n

y
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 
in

 
th

e
 
d

ra
ft

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
o

m
e

 r
e

lia
n
c
e

 o
n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 g
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
n
d

 s
o

m
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 W
e

 w
ill

 
re

v
ie

w
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

a
p
e

rs
 a

n
d
 m

in
u
te

s
. 

  
   O

n
g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

  

    
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 
 A

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
 IS

A
2

6
0

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

Page 44



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
3
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

 P
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

m
a

y 
n

o
t 

b
e
 

c
le

a
rl

y
 

a
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 

a
t 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

r 
m

a
y
 l
a

c
k
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

ra
b
le

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 
ta

rg
e

ts
. 

 
A

s
 
a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n
c
e

, 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 
m

a
y
 
n

o
t 

b
e

 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 
a

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
a

re
a

s
 
a

n
d

 
th

e
re

 
is

 
a

 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 
m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
ir
 

a
im

s
. 

C
o

u
n
c
ils

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

h
a

v
e

 
c
le

a
rl

y
 

d
e
fi
n

e
d

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 
a

re
 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
n

d
 

c
a

s
c
a

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

p
la

n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

p
la

n
, 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 p
la

n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n
ta

in
 

m
e

a
s
u

ra
b

le
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 P
R

F
 1

2
6

 
 ri
g

h
t 

th
in

g
s
, 

m
e

a
n

in
g
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

b
e
 

u
n

a
b

le
 

to
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

r 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 
P

R
F

 1
3

0
 

  T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

n
o
t 

h
a

v
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

to
 

c
o

lle
c
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 
to

 
re

p
o

rt
 
o

n
 
th

e
 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
o

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 S
O

A
. 

 P
R

F
 1

3
0

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

m
a

y 
n

o
t 

b
e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

o
n

 
a

 
ti
m

e
ly

 
b

a
s
is

 a
n

d
 b

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

is
 r

o
b

u
s
t.

  
P

R
F

 1
3
1

 
 

   W
e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i

ts
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e
 S

O
A

. 
 I

n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

w
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
n

e
d

 
b

y
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 

p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

s
o

u
n

d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u

re
 

th
e

re
 

a
re

 
c
le

a
rl

y
 

d
e
fi
n

e
d

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 

th
a

t 
a

re
 

c
a

s
c
a

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

th
a
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
a

b
le

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 s

e
t.

  
 

 W
e
 

w
ill

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n
d

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
, 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 

a
n

d
 

p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

to
 

e
n
s
u

re
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n
g

 
th

e
 

ri
g

h
t 

th
in

g
s
 

th
a
t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 
th

e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

r 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 c
o

lle
c
t 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
g
re

e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
o

s
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 S
O

A
. 

 e
n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 d

e
a
d

lin
e
s
 

a
n
d

 i
s
 r

o
b
u

s
t.

 
 

   
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

Page 45



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
4
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 c

le
a
r 

o
n

 w
h

a
t 

th
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 o

r 
in

 c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 w
o

rk
 

in
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 
 P

R
F

 1
5

3
 

 T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
/ 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

it
s
 k

e
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 
P

R
F

 
1
5
5

 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 
n

o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 
m

a
n
a

g
e

 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
ri
s
k
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

ld
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 f

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 P
R

F
 1

5
8

 
 

   W
e
 

w
ill

 
re

o
u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 

in
 

o
u
r 

F
o

llo
w

-u
p

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 (

R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

6
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
).

  
W

e
 p

la
n
 t

o
 p

la
c
e

 
re

lia
n

c
e

 o
n

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
  

  
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
   

Page 46



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
5
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

O
A

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 P

la
n
s
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 

c
o

s
te

d
 

a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 
fo

r 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

 P
R

F
 1

9
7

, 
1

9
9

, 
2

0
4

 
 T

h
e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

m
a

y
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

a
n

d
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

a
n
d

 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

s
. 

 
P

R
F

 1
9

7
 

   T
h

e
 p

la
n
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 a
n
d

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

lo
n

g
e
r 

te
rm

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 w

h
o

le
 l

if
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 P

R
F

 1
9

8
 

 T
h

e
 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 m

a
y
 
n

o
t 

b
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 
b

a
s
e

d
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y 

fa
il 

to
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 P
R

F
 2

0
4

 
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

r 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 l
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 m

e
t 

d
u
e

 t
o

 c
a

s
h

 l
im

it
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 c

o
s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 

 P
R

F
 

2
0
5

, 
2

0
6

 
  

    W
e
 

w
ill

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e

 
S

O
A

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
n
d

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
s
 

in
 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 
a

g
re

e
d

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

lin
k
a

g
e

 
w

it
h

 p
ri
o
ri

ty
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
fo

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

i
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

 
 W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 c

la
ri

ty
 o

f 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

 a
n

d
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

la
n

s
 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 

s
ta

te
d
 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

k
e

y
 

p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

if
 a

ll 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

n
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

 
a

u
d

it
. 

  
    W

e
 
w

ill
 
re

v
ie

w
 
th

e
 
a

n
n
u

a
l 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 
re

p
o

rt
 
a

n
d

 
o

n
g
o

in
g

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

 

    F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

Page 47



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
6
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

 P
e

o
p

le
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

S
in

g
le

 
S

ta
tu

s
 

w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
a

ff
e

c
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r/
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
a

ff
e

c
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

e
q

u
a

l 
p

a
y
, 

s
in

g
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 

a
n
d

 a
g

e
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 b

u
d
g

e
te

d
 f

o
r.

  
P

R
F

 
2
3
8

 
 A

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

h
e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
s
a

fe
ty

, 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 

a
n

d
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 P

R
F

 2
4

1
 

 A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a

g
in

g
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 

a
b

u
s
e

 
a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

-r
e

la
te

d
 

c
a

u
s
e

s
 

o
f 

ill
-h

e
a
lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
in

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 w

o
rk

. 
 P

R
F

 2
4
9

 
 

   O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

   A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

Page 48



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
7
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

 A
s

s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  A

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d

 a
s
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 t

h
a

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

m
a

y
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

m
o

s
t 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 
a

s
s
e

t 
b

a
s
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

a
c
q

u
ir

in
g
, 

h
o
ld

in
g

 
a

n
d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 

a
s
s
e

ts
 

m
a

y
 

n
o
t 

b
e

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 
 P

R
F

 2
6

7
 

 In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

s
s
e

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 u

s
e

d
 

to
 

in
fo

rm
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
la

n
s
. 

 K
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

c
o

s
t 

a
n
d

 u
ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

r 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e

 
th

e
 

u
s
e

 
o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 
e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 
P

R
F

 2
6

9
 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

s
s
e

ts
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

h
a
s
 t

it
le

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

o
n
 g

o
o

d
 a

s
s
e

ts
. 

 P
R

F
 2

7
0

 
 

    O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

             re
g
is

te
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

. 

    F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

Page 49



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
8
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 -

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

fa
il 

to
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
 

fu
lly

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n
c
e

. 
 P

R
F

 2
8
9

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

n
o
t 

b
e

 
a

b
le

 
to

 
d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
th

a
t 

th
e
ir
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
c
o

m
p

ly
 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 M
c
C

le
lla

n
d
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 P

R
F

 2
8
9

 
 

   O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

   A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

Page 50



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

2
9
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 U
s

e
 o

f 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

m
a

y
 

fa
il 

to
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 

d
e
s
ir
e

d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

if
 

g
o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

a
n
d

 
d

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e

 
O

n
e
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 
p

o
rt

a
l,
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
s
, 

th
e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 S

in
g

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

) 
a

re
 

n
o
t 

s
p

o
n

s
o

re
d

 
a

t 
th

e
 

a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 

le
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

is
 

n
o
t 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

. 
 P

F
R

 3
1

2
 

 

   O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

   A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 m

a
y
 f

a
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 f
a

il 
to

 m
e

e
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
  

P
R

F
 p

a
g

e
s

 6
0

-6
3

 
 

   O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

   A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

Page 51



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
0
 

T
a

b
le

 7
 -

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 C
ro

s
s

 C
u

tt
in

g
 I

s
s

u
e

s
 

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 D

iv
e

rs
it

y
 

 If
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

, 
it
 

ri
s
k
s
 

b
e
in

g
 

c
ri
ti
c
is

e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

e
le

c
to

ra
te

, 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n
d

 E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
. 

 P
R

F
 

3
7

 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 
b

e
 
u

n
a
b

le
 
to

 
g

iv
e

 
a

 
c
le

a
r,

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

-b
a
s
e

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
it
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

it
s
 

d
u
ti
e

s
 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

a
c
e

, 
g

e
n

d
e

r,
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
, 

a
g

e
, 

s
e

x
u

a
l 

o
ri
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

lig
io

n
 /

 b
e

lie
f.

  
P

R
F

 3
6

 
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

il
it

y
 

 A
c
ro

s
s
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

, 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

f 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

o
n
 w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
ri
s
k
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t.

  
P

R
F

 4
2

 
 Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

is
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
a

n
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 t

h
a
t 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 s

e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 o
n
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
n
a

lt
y
. 

  
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

g
ly

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

. 

     O
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
. 

     
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

  

Page 52



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
1
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

  
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 M
o

v
e

 t
o

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 In

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 b

o
th

 a
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

n
d

 
a

 
w

id
e
r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 
th

e
 
L

o
c
a

l 
C

o
d
e

 
o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u
d

it
. 

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

a
re

 
n

o
w

 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 

to
 

p
re

p
a

re
 

a
n
d

 
p

u
b
lis

h
 

a
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

G
o

o
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
in

 p
la

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 

to
 

p
u

t 
n

e
w

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
in

 
p

la
c
e

 
b

e
fo

re
 

th
e

 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
. 

T
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 a

t 
a

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

(o
r 

d
e
le

g
a

te
d
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 c

h
ie

f 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 a
 l
e

a
d
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
r.

 
 

   th
e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

  
 

 
 

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

it
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

th
e
 S

O
R

P
. 

  

   A
u

d
it
 

o
p

in
io

n
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

Page 53



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
2
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

 
 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 

th
e

 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 

A
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 
 T

h
e
 

2
0
0

9
/1

0
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 

a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

to
ta

lli
n

g
 

£
2
6

.6
2
5

 
m

ill
io

n
. 

 
R

e
c
e

n
t 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 

to
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
a

n
d

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s
 i

n
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

ile
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 

p
ro

je
c
ti
n

g
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 G

e
n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d
 o

f 
£

8
.4

4
2

 m
ill

io
n
 i

n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o

n
 
w

it
h

 
a

 
b

u
d

g
e

te
d
 
b

re
a

k
e

v
e

n
 
p

o
s
it
io

n
, 

th
is

 
is

 
o

n
ly

 
b

e
in

g
 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 
b

y
 
o

n
e

-o
ff

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 
o

f 
£

6
.2

0
1

 
m

ill
io

n
 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 

C
o

s
ts

 
a

s
 

a
 

re
s
u

lt
 

o
f 

a
 

re
d
u

c
e

d
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n
d

 a
 £

5
.9

9
7
 m

ill
io

n
 s

a
v
in

g
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

 
re

v
ie

w
 

o
f 

p
a
s
t 

V
A

T
 

c
la

im
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 

o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 

a
re

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

 
to

 
e

x
c
e

e
d

 
th

e
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

b
y
 

£
4
.2

4
7

 m
ill

io
n
. 

 
 In

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

t 
it
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

o
n

 
1

6
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0

9
 

to
 

a
 

ra
n
g

e
 

o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
m

o
u
n

ti
n

g
 

to
 

£
2
3

.0
7

0
 

m
ill

io
n
 

to
 

h
e

lp
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e

 
a

 
b

a
la

n
c
e

d
 

b
u
d

g
e

t.
 

 

    W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

p
a
p

e
rs

 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 
y
e

a
r 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 
a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 
a

 
s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 
B

o
a
rd

 
a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

   
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 
  

Page 54



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
3
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

 
 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 T

h
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 i

n
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 i
ts

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 f

u
lf
il 

it
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
ro

le
 i

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 
 T

h
e
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 

s
e

c
ti
o

n
 

is
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
d
 

a
s
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
ro

u
n

d
s
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

h
a

v
e

 f
a

ile
d

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

c
a

n
d

id
a
te

s
. 

 I
t 

w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i

n
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2

0
1

0
 
th

a
t 

th
e

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it
 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
b

e
 
fu

lly
 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

e
d

. 
 A

n
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fi
rm

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 2
0
0

9
/1

0
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 a

 t
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

is
 

u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
fo

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 

   D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 

to
 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 
 W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e
 o

u
t-

s
o

u
rc

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 w

e
 c

a
n

 
p

la
c
e

 r
e

lia
n
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

. 
 

   
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

Page 55



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
4
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

 (
C

 
 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 2
0
0

9
 S

O
R

P
 

 
 

  F
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

th
e

 
m

o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 
to

 
th

e
 
S

O
R

P
 
is

 
in

 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 
fo

r 
p

ri
v
a

te
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

 a
n

d
 s

im
ila

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

fo
r 

P
F

I 
a

n
d

 s
im

ila
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 F

R
S

5
 b

u
t 

o
n
 a

n
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
IF

R
IC

 
1

2
 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
 
A

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

n
o
n

-
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n
c
il 

ta
x
. 

 

   W
e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 o

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 

a
n
d

 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

(U
K

 
a

n
d

 
Ir

e
la

n
d

),
 

a
n

d
 

E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
, 

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 
N

o
te

s
 

a
n
d

 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
is

s
u

e
d

 
b

y
 

th
e
 

A
u

d
it
in

g
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 
B

o
a

rd
. 

 
W

e
 
w

ill
 
u

s
e

 
th

e
 
C

IP
F

A
 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 
c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 
S

O
R

P
 
fo

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
. 

  

   A
u

d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
 IS

A
2

6
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
  

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

 F
R

S
 1

7
, 

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

, 
D

is
c

lo
s

u
re

 
 L
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 F
R

S
 1

7
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 f

ir
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
o
v
e

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 p
a
id

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
le

d
g
e

r.
 

  

   In
 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
, 

th
e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

o
f 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n
 

J
o

in
t 

P
o

lic
e

 
B

o
a
rd

 
a

n
d

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 F

ir
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
s
c
u

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
d

 a
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
, 

in
 

th
a
t 

th
e

y
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
, 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

R
S

 1
7

 i
s
s
u

e
. 

  
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l.
  

If
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 G

ro
u
p

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

b
e
fo

re
 s

ig
n

in
g

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 
 

   A
u

d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
 IS

A
 2

6
0

 R
e

p
o
rt

 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

Page 56



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
5
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

 
 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 
 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

m
a

y
 

n
o

t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

d
e
a

d
lin

e
 

o
f 

3
0
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

0
. 

 T
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 W

G
A

 t
o
 

th
e
 

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
b

ro
u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
b

y
 

o
n

e
 

m
o

n
th

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 2
0

0
8

/0
9
. 

  
 

   W
e
 
w

ill
 
h

a
v
e

 e
a

rl
y
 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 t
e

a
m

 t
o

 a
g
re

e
 a

 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 t
h

a
t 

a
llo

w
s
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

a
u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 b
e
fo

re
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
. 

 

   A
u

d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

W
h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ts

 

 H
B

/C
T

B
 S

u
b

s
id

y
 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

la
w

b
a

c
k

 
 T

h
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

W
o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 (

D
W

P
) 

m
a

y
 c

la
w

b
a
c
k
 

s
u

b
s
id

y
 
w

h
e

re
 
th

e
 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
c
la

im
 
is

 
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 
o

n
 
b

o
th

 
a

c
tu

a
l 
a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
p

o
la

te
d

 o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
e

rr
o

rs
. 

  
 

   D
u

ri
n

g
 

o
u
r 

w
o

rk
 

to
 

c
e

rt
if
y
 

th
e
 

a
n

n
u
a

l 
s
u

b
s
id

y
 

c
la

im
, 

a
n
d

 
c
le

a
r 

q
u
e

ri
e

s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

D
W

P
, 

w
e

 
w

ill
 

lia
i

B
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 c

la
im

 e
rr

o
rs

 a
n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 g

iv
in

g
 r

is
e

 t
o

 e
rr

o
rs

. 
 

   A
u

d
it
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 

S
u

b
s
id

y
 C

la
im

 
 Q

u
a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

le
tt

e
r 

if
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 

Page 57



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s

is
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
6
 

T
a

b
le

 8
 -

 L
o

c
a
l 

Is
s
u

e
s

 R
is

k
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

 
 

 

K
e

y
 r

is
k

s
  

A
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

t 
 

 In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 (
IF

R
S

) 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 
n

o
t 

b
e
 

fu
lly

 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 
re

v
is

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 F
ro

m
 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
, 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 
m

u
s
t 

b
e
 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 
in

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

(I
F

R
S

).
  

A
n

 I
F

R
S

-b
a

s
e

d
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n
 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 
w

ill
 r

e
p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 

S
O

R
P

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0

/1
1

. 
  

 T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
n

e
e
d

 
to

 
re

s
ta

te
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
to

 a
n

 I
F

R
S

 b
a

s
is

, 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

 a
 r

e
s
ta

te
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
 I

F
R

S
-b

a
s
e

d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 s
h

e
e

t.
  

F
ro

m
 i

n
it
ia

l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
, 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
re

 
m

a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

in
 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 

fo
r 

fu
ll 

IF
R

S
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 

   W
e
 
w

ill
 
re

v
ie

w
 
th

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IF

R
S

. 
       W

e
 

w
ill

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e
 

IF
R

S
 

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
n
c
e

 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 O

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

a
n

 e
a
rl

y
 

s
ta

g
e
 

a
n
d

 
s
u

m
m

a
ri
s
e

d
 
in

 
o

u
r 

a
n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 
W

e
 
p

la
n

 
to

 
p

la
c
e

 
re

lia
n

c
e

 o
n

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

 
  A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

  C
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 C

li
m

a
te

 
 In

 
th

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

c
lim

a
te

, 
th

e
re

 
is

 
lik

e
ly

 
to

 
b

e
 

e
v
e

n
 

g
re

a
te

r 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r,
 w

it
h

 a
n

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
. 

  
  

   W
e
 
w

ill
 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 
to

 
m

o
n
it
o

r 
th

e
 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 
fr

o
m

 
o

u
r 

a
tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 
a

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
o

n
g
o

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 b
u
d

g
e
t 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

 W
e

 w
il
l 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

a
 f

o
rm

a
l 

u
p
d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

   A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

     

     

Page 58



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 V

I 
 A

c
ro

n
y
m

s
 

  
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 

3
7
 

A
IP

 
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

 A
P

B
 

 
A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
 B

V
 

 
B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 
 C

IP
F

A
 

 
C

h
a

rt
e

re
d

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

c
y
 

 C
P

P
 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 C
R

M
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 D
W

P
 

 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
W

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 

 F
R

S
 

 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

 F
S

A
P

 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 
 H

B
/ 

C
T

B
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t/

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

 H
M

IE
 

 
a

ti
o

n
 

 IC
T

 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 

 IF
R

IC
 

 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 I
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 IF
R

S
 

 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 IS
A

 
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 

 IT
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

 

L
A

N
 

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 

 N
F

I 
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
u

d
 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 
 P

F
I/

 P
P

P
 

P
ri

v
a

te
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ri

v
a

te
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 P
R

F
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 R
is

k
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 P

R
G

 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 (
A

u
d

it
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

) 
 P

P
R

 
 

P
u

b
lic

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
 S

H
R

 
 

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g

u
la

to
r 

 S
O

A
 

 
S

in
g

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
 S

O
L

A
C

E
 

S
o

c
ie

ty
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

s
 

 S
O

R
P

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
 S

P
I 

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 S

R
A

 
 

S
h

a
re

d
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

 S
T

O
 

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 T
ra

d
in

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

 S
W

IA
 

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 

 T
B

A
 

 
T

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 
 W

G
A

 
 

W
h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ts

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\4\AI00004421\mar10bankrecprogressreportISSUED0.doc 
Page 1 of 4 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit and Risk 
 
DATE    2 March 2010 
 
REPORT BY:  City Chamberlain   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Bank Reconciliation Progress Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/10/044 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1  To update Committee, as instructed, on progress to date in relation to the 

Bank Reconciliation process and the implementation of the Automatic 
Bank Reconciliation Module. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

a) note the current positive progress on maintaining the bank 
reconciliations and on the implementation of the automated bank 
reconciliation system. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The costs of the bank reconciliations team are met from existing budgets 

in 2009/10 including additional budget allocated from the Corporate 
Investment Fund.  

 
3.2 It is expected that with the successful delivery of the module it will provide 

the opportunity to review the structure and composition of the team that is 
currently undertaking the bank reconciliation work and may result in 
reduced costs going forward. 

 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
4.1 The impact on Services is to engage in the redesign and implementation 

of new business processes that are required to make the changes that will 
then support the successful delivery of the automated bank reconciliation 
module. 

 
4.2 This will require different levels of commitment from different Services 

however it is a critical element in shaping the way the Council organises 
itself in this area.  It will be vital that resources are made available to 
support the agreed changes. 

 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 61



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\4\AI00004421\mar10bankrecprogressreportISSUED0.doc 
Page 2 of 4 

5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The bank reconciliation is a key control and as such it is important to 

maintain the ‘up to date’ position reached in order to ensure that 
transactions are properly and appropriately recorded and accounted for on 
a timely basis.  

 
5.2 Attention is on maintaining the reconciliations and identifying where 

improvements can be made to the audit trail, management information 
and the processes that generate the various transactions on the ledger 
and bank statements. 

 
5.3 There continues to be input from across the Services and changes have 

been effected to business processes during the course of this financial 
year. 

 
5.4 Accommodation for the team is currently at Summerhill Centre and this 

will be reviewed as availability and resource requirements are reassessed. 
 
6. REPORT 

 
Background 

6.1 The team involved in the bank reconciliation process currently comprises  
3 full time and 2 part time staff.  

 
6.2 In addition a project manager has been taken on to manage the 

implementation of the automated bank reconciliation module with costs 
being met from the Corporate Investment Fund.   

 
6.3 There are other costs associated with the full implementation of the 

module, for example ICT costs associated with interface changes and 
supplier consultation all of which are subject to review as the project 
proceeds.  

 

Progress 
6.4 This report follows on from the update provided to the Audit and Risk 

Committee at its meeting of 19th January 2010.  
 
6.5 Since then there continues to be positive progress in relation to the bank 

reconciliation, with continuing timely and robust clearance of items from 
the reconciliation ensuring that it is up to date within agreed timescales.   

 
6.6 As at the time of writing the December reconciliation is completed and has 

been approved by the Senior Accountant.  
  
6.7 The January reconciliation is underway and is expected to be completed 

during week three of February. This will be required in order to load the 
opening balances on to the Automated Bank Reconciliation Module.  

 

Page 62



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\4\AI00004421\mar10bankrecprogressreportISSUED0.doc 
Page 3 of 4 

6.8 The Debtors bank account reconciliation continues to be maintained on a 
daily basis. 

 
Automated Bank Reconciliation Module 
Activity since last report: 

6.9 This has included  

• Completion of the training on the use of E-returns to all areas where 
income is recorded. This will eliminate the need for the completion of 
manual income slips and the batch processing of the same. 

• With effect from the 1st of February the reconciliation of all Income 
Bank Accounts is now being carried out using the Civica Icon Bank 
Reconciliation Module on a daily basis – this includes the main 
General Bank Account. 

• Until such time as the Icon interface to the General Ledger has been    
established for all funds some temporary procedures will be required   
to maintain the integrity of the system. These will be documented to 
ensure that adequate controls are in place.  

 
Next Steps: 

6.10 Some of the next key stages of the process involve the following tasks and 
achieving the target timeline of full implementation by 31 March 2010. 

• Continue support to users of e-returns. 

• Establish the detailed opening balances within the Bank 
Reconciliation module. 

• Configure test system for Creditors Account. 

• Carry out the initial reconciliations within the Bank Reconciliation 
Module. 

• Document the daily processing procedures for the reconciliation of all 
Bank Accounts. 

• Complete the specification of the required Interfaces between the 
Icon income system and the General Ledger. 

• Configure Cash Office Bankings from the Civica Hosted service 

• Configure Debit and Credit card payments from the Civica Hosted 
Service 

 
6.11 The project continues to run well and it is expected that the key dates will 

continue to be met through early engagement with the key stakeholders 
and ensuring that the framework for managing and controlling the project 
is in place. 

 
6.12 Following the Go-Live of the General bank account the Project Manager’s 

contract comes to an end on 26 February 2010 and this will be managed 
to ensure the work continues and to progress permanent solutions for 
temporary procedures that are presently in place (referred to at 6.9 
above). 

 
6.13 The Automated Bank Reconciliation Project Board continues to maintain 

overall responsibility for direction and management of the various strands 
of the project throughout the implementation period.   

 

Page 63



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\2\4\AI00004421\mar10bankrecprogressreportISSUED0.doc 
Page 4 of 4 

 
7. AUTHORISED SIGNATURE 

Susan Cooper, City Chamberlain 
sucooper@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522551 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

Jonathan Belford, Corporate Accounting Manager 
jbelford@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522573 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Page 64



Agenda Item 3.1

Page 65

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3.2

Page 123

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 19th January 2010
	1.2 Committee Business Statement
	2.1 Audit Progress Report 2009/10- Report by Henderson Loggie
	2.2 Risk Assessment, Annual Audit Plan and Fee Proposal 2009-10 - Report by Henderson Loggie
	2.3 Bank Reconciliation Progress Report - Report by the City Chamberlain
	3.1 Internal Audit Reports Issued - Report by the Internal Audit Manager
	CG - City Chamberlain - General Ledger Feeder Systems
	CG - Parking Fines Income Collection
	CG - City Chamberlain - Following the Public Pound
	CG - PMQA External Management

	3.2 Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations and Results of Physical Verification - Report by the Internal Audit Manager

